
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 

Hon. Robert J. Torres, Jr. 

Chairman 

Hon. Alberto C. Lamorena, III 

Vice-Chairman 

Atty. Jacqueline T. Terlaje 

Member 

Mrs. Donna R. Muña Quinata 

Member 

Dr. KristiAnna S. Whitman 

Member 

ADMINISTRATION 

Stephen P. Hattori 

Executive Director 

John P. Morrison 

Deputy Director 

Cathyann C. Gogue 

Administrative Director 

PUBLIC DEFENDER SERVICE CORPORATION 
(Kotperasion Setbision Defensot Pupbleku) 

GOVERNMENT OF GUAM 

779 Route 4  

Sinajåña, Guam 96910-5174 

Tel: (671) 475-3100 ◆ Fax: (671) 477-5844 

Board of Trustees’ Regular Scheduled Meeting 

Tuesday, January 23, 2024 – 12:30 p.m. 

Blended Meeting (In-Person/Zoom & YouTube) 

A  G  E  N  D A 

I. Call to Order

II. Roll Call

III. Determination of Quorum

IV. Proof of Due Notice of Meeting:

A. Notice:  5 Working Days, DOA/PDSC/Guam PDN          January 16, 2024 

B. Notice:  48 Hours, DOA/PDSC/Guam PDN           January 19, 2024 

V. Approval of Minutes:  Regular Scheduled Meeting of November 28, 2023

VI. Old Business

A. Financial Status Update / Allotment Releases (PDSC, APD, CLC )

B. Report from PDSC Executive Director (EXHIBIT A)   

C. Report from APD Managing Attorney (EXHIBIT B)   

D. Report from CLC Managing Attorney (EXHIBIT C)   

VII. New Business

VIII. Public Discussion

IX. Adjournment and Next Meeting Date:  Tuesday, February 27, 2024 at

12:30 p.m. via In-Person/Zoom / YouTube / PDSC Conference Room 

Page 1 of 13



1
9

T
u

e
s
d
a
y,

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

  
1
6
, 
2
0
2
4
 

T
h

e
 P

a
c

if
ic

 D
a

il
y

 N
e

w
s

g
u

a
m

p
d

n
.c

o
m

Team Guam to Doha as 
official representatives for 
Guam, a release from the 
federation states.

“This team of four swim-
mers were able to repre-
sent Guam well in Fukuo-
ka during the last World 

Aquatics event in summer 
and now have the oppor-
tunity again in Doha. We 
look forward to an exciting 
year for our Guam swim-
mers,” San Agustin said.

Though the Guam Swim-
ming Federation faces 
challenges with the lack of 
proper local training and 
competition facilities, it 
continues to support local 
athletes and ensures events 

are made available for its 
members.

“In the face of adversi-
ty, GSF has continued to 
open opportunities for 
Guam swimmer athletes, 
and we are hopeful that 
with the continued support 
from World Aquatics and 
our GSF members, Guam 
will be represented on the 
world stage for years to 
come,” Edwin Ching, pres-
ident of Guam Swimming 
Federation, said.

World Aquatics Presi-
dent Husain Al-Musallam, 
in a press conference, said 
he was excited for the up-
coming World Aquatics 
Championships.

“With 197 countries vy-
ing for victory across six 
sports and 75 medal events, 
this championship is the 
global aquatics showcase 
event and qualification 
gateway to the Paris 2024 
Olympics,” he said.

The championship is 
a celebration of aquatic 
prowess and a testament to 
athletes’ dedication world-
wide, he said.

“Let’s embrace the antic-
ipation and witness the ex-
cellence that will unfold in 

Doha,” Al-Musallam said.
For more informa-

tion on World Aquatics 
World Championships 
in Doha, visit https://

w w w. w o r l d a q u a t i c s .
com/competitions/2969/
world-aquatics-champion-
ships-doha-2024

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION
KUMISION I SETBISION SIBIT

Bell Tower Suite 201, 710 W. Marine Corps Drive 
Hagåtña, Guam 96910

Tel: (671) 647-1855 • Fax (671) 647-1867

IN-PERSON MEETING AT 9:00 A.M. ON THURSDAY, JANUARY 18, 2024.
The public can access a live stream of this meeting on the CSC website at: 

csc.guam.gov or via zoom at: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/81704472837?pwd=Rqq1xhbCZzNgxgFM01vsk
FbtS9IcHv.1

(Meeting ID: 817 0447 2837 / Passcode: 949527)

AGENDA:
I. CALL TO ORDER.
II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: November 29, 2023.
III. NEW BUSINESS: None
IV. OLD BUSINESS:

(1) HEARING ON THE MERITS.
Christopher Florig vs. Guam Fire Department; 
CSC Case No.: 18-AA07T.

(2) SIGNING: DECISION AND ORDER.
John Santiago vs. Guam International Airport Authority;
CSC Case No.: 20-GRE06.

V. GENERAL BUSINESS:
(1) Bills and Laws affecting CSC: None.
(2) Litigation by Administrative Counsel: None.
(3) Administrative Matters:

(a) CSC Resolution No.: 2024-001; Relative to Delegating the
CSC Executive Director the Authority to Preliminarily Approve
Assessments and Investigations on behalf of the Civil Service 
Commission (CSC) and the People of Guam.

(b) Board Training: Civil Service Commission Board Members. 
 VI. ADJOURNMENT.

/s/ Daniel D. Leon Guerrero, Executive Director
Paid for by the Civil Service Commission.

For special accommodations, please contact Maria P. Masnayon, 

CSC ADA Coordinator at (671) 647-1872 / (671) 647-1855.

NOTICE OF MEETING

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION
KUMISION I SETBISION SIBIT

Bell Tower Suite 201, 710 W. Marine Corps Drive 
Hagåtña, Guam 96910

Tel: (671) 647-1855 • Fax (671) 647-1867

NOTICE OF MEETING

AGENDA:

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: November 30, 2023.

III. NEW BUSINESS: None.

IV. OLD BUSINESS:

(1) HEARING ON THE MERITS.

Randy E. Diaz vs. Guam Memorial Hospital Authority;

CSC Case No.: 22-AA04S.

(2) SIGNING: ORDER AFTER HEARING.

Joyjean R. Arceo vs. Port Authority of Guam;

CSC Case No.: 23-AA11T.

V. GENERAL BUSINESS:

(1) Bills and Laws affecting CSC: None.

(2) Litigation by Administrative Counsel: None.

(3) Administrative Matters:

(a) Board Training: Civil Service Commission Board Members.

VI. ADJOURNMENT.

For special accommodations, please contact Maria P. Masnayon, 
CSC ADA Coordinator at (671) 647-1872 / (671) 647-1855.

/s/ Daniel D. Leon Guerrero, Executive Director
Paid for by the Civil Service Commission.

IN-PERSON MEETING AT 9:00 A.M. ON TUESDAY, JANUARY 23, 2024.
The public can access a live stream of this meeting on the CSC website 

at: csc.guam.gov or via zoom at: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84821802395?pwd=xBv4layIau8xSZQIHBu

0IX5CMkoZqI.1 (Meeting ID: 848 2180 2395 / Passcode: 841851)

Board of Trustees’ Regular Scheduled Meeting
Tuesday, January 23, 2024 – 12:30 p.m.

Blended Meeting (In-Person/Zoom & YouTube)

A  G  E  N  D A
I. Call to Order

II. Roll Call

III. Determination of Quorum

IV. Proof of Due Notice of Meeting:

A. Notice: 5 Working Days, DOA/PDSC/Guam PDN January 16, 2024
B. Notice: 48 Hours, DOA/PDSC/Guam PDN January 19, 2024

V. Approval of Minutes: Regular Scheduled Meeting of November 28, 2023

VI. Old Business

A. Financial Status Update / Allotment Releases (PDSC, APD, CLC ) 
B. Report from PDSC Executive Director (EXHIBIT A)  
C. Report from APD Managing Attorney (EXHIBIT B)  
D. Report from CLC Managing Attorney (EXHIBIT C)  

VII. New Business

VIII. Public Discussion

IX. Adjournment and Next Meeting Date: Tuesday, February 27, 2024 at
12:30 p.m. via In-Person/Zoom / YouTube / PDSC Conference Room

PUBLIC DEFENDER SERVICE CORPORATION 
(Kotperasion Setbision Defensot Pupbleku) 

GOVERNMENT OF GUAM
779 Route 4 

Sinajåña, Guam 96910-5174
Tel: (671) 475-3100 • Fax: (671) 477-5844

The scORe

Swimming
Continued from Page 20

COURTESY OF DON SAN AGUSTIN

Team Guam, from left, James hendrix, Mia lee, amaya Bollinger, 
and israel Poppe. These four athletes represented Guam in fu-
kuoka, Japan in July 2023.

Page 2 of 13



1
6

F
ri
d

a
y,

 J
a
n
u
a
ry

  
1
9
, 
2
0
2

4
 

T
h

e
 P

a
c

if
ic

 D
a

il
y

 N
e

w
s

g
u

a
m

p
d

n
.c

o
m

showtime

The March 16 showtime 
is at 5 a.m. for all partici-
pants.

The go time for runners 
that choose to participate 
in the 10K distance is at 
5:45 a.m., and the 5K dis-
tance at 6 a.m.

Early bird registration 
started on Jan. 8 and will 
continue until Jan. 28 with 
a fee of $25 for the 5K run 
and $25 for the 10K run.

The fee from Jan. 29 to 
March 7 will be $25 for the 
5K run and $30 for the 10K 
run.

The fee for late registra-
tion beginning March 8 
and 9 will be $30 for the 
5K run and $35 for the 10K 
run.

Unofficial registration 
(no chip timing) will be 
from March 10 through 16 
at select Pay-Less Super-

markets locations. Unoffi-
cial registration locations 
will be posted online.

A mandatory packet 
pick-up will be on March 
9 at the Guam Elite Basket-
ball Association National 
Training Center/Gym at 
Tiyan, Barrigada.

The first 1,500 5K finish-
ers will receive a Run Guam 
t-shirt and a reusable bag.

The first 300 10K finish-
ers will receive a Run Guam 
singlet and a reusable bag.

All registered runners 
will also be entered into a 
raffle to win prizes, includ-
ing a grand prize of $600 in 
Pay-Less gift certificates.

A $500 cash prize will be 
awarded to the school with 
the most participation.

for a better Guam

Officially incorporated in 
2006, the Pay-Less Com-
munity Foundation focuses 
on providing opportunities 
for community organiza-
tions to better serve the 
residents of Guam.

The Foundation offers 
grant funding to eligible 
local organizations with an 

aim to improve the quality 
of life in Guam and address 
significant gaps in the areas 
of health, education, social 
services, and the environ-
ment.

“We are very excited to 
once again share the Hafa 
Adai Spirit and our Kick 
the Fat 5K/10K Run/Walk 
and Wellness Fair with our 
island community,” said 
Marie Benito, Pay-Less 
Community Foundation 
president.

Those interested in par-
ticipating in the run can 
register or access more in-
formation online at pay-
lessfoundation.com.

RICK CRUZ/PACIFIC DAILY NEWS

In this 2019 file photo, race 
coordinator Manny Hechanova, 
bottom left, manages to cap-
ture a selfie, with race partici-
pants as his background, prior 
to the start of the 10-kilometer 
run of the 23rd annual Pay-
Less Kick The Fat 5k/10k Run/
Walk on Marine Corps Drive, 
near the Chamorro Village in 
Hagåtña on Jan. 26, 2019. This 
year’s Kick The Fat race will be 
held on March 16.

CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION
KUMISION I SETBISION SIBIT

Bell Tower Suite 201, 710 W. Marine Corps Drive 
Hagåtña, Guam 96910

Tel: (671) 647-1855 • Fax (671) 647-1867

NOTICE OF MEETING

AGENDA:

I. CALL TO ORDER.

II. APPROVAL OF MINUTES: November 30, 2023.

III. NEW BUSINESS: None.

IV. OLD BUSINESS:

(1) HEARING ON THE MERITS.

Randy E. Diaz vs. Guam Memorial Hospital Authority;

CSC Case No.: 22-AA04S.

(2) SIGNING: ORDER AFTER HEARING.

Joyjean R. Arceo vs. Port Authority of Guam;

CSC Case No.: 23-AA11T.

V. GENERAL BUSINESS:

(1) Bills and Laws affecting CSC: None.

(2) Litigation by Administrative Counsel: None.

(3) Administrative Matters:

(a) Board Training: Civil Service Commission Board Members.

VI. ADJOURNMENT.

For special accommodations, please contact Maria P. Masnayon, 
CSC ADA Coordinator at (671) 647-1872 / (671) 647-1855.

/s/ Daniel D. Leon Guerrero, Executive Director
Paid for by the Civil Service Commission.

IN-PERSON MEETING AT 9:00 A.M. ON TUESDAY, JANUARY 23, 2024.
The public can access a live stream of this meeting on the CSC website 

at: csc.guam.gov or via zoom at: 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84821802395?pwd=xBv4layIau8xSZQIHBu

0IX5CMkoZqI.1 (Meeting ID: 848 2180 2395 / Passcode: 841851)

Board of Trustees’ Regular Scheduled Meeting
Tuesday, January 23, 2024 – 12:30 p.m.

Blended Meeting (In-Person/Zoom & YouTube)

A  G  E  N  D A
I. Call to Order

II. Roll Call

III. Determination of Quorum

IV. Proof of Due Notice of Meeting:

A. Notice: 5 Working Days, DOA/PDSC/Guam PDN January 16, 2024
B. Notice: 48 Hours, DOA/PDSC/Guam PDN January 19, 2024

V. Approval of Minutes: Regular Scheduled Meeting of November 28, 2023

VI. Old Business

A. Financial Status Update / Allotment Releases (PDSC, APD, CLC ) 
B. Report from PDSC Executive Director (EXHIBIT A)  
C. Report from APD Managing Attorney (EXHIBIT B)  
D. Report from CLC Managing Attorney (EXHIBIT C)  

VII. New Business

VIII. Public Discussion

IX. Adjournment and Next Meeting Date: Tuesday, February 27, 2024 at
12:30 p.m. via In-Person/Zoom / YouTube / PDSC Conference Room

PUBLIC DEFENDER SERVICE CORPORATION 
(Kotperasion Setbision Defensot Pupbleku) 

GOVERNMENT OF GUAM
779 Route 4 

Sinajåña, Guam 96910-5174
Tel: (671) 475-3100 • Fax: (671) 477-5844

IN THE SUPERIOR COURT OF GUAM

IN THE MATTER OF THE ESTATE

OF

LOURDES CRISOSTOMO GOGO
GUTIERREZ,

Decedent.

PROBATE CASE NO.: PR0217-23

NOTICE OF HEARING

THIS NOTICE IS REQUIRED BY LAW. 
YOU ARE NOT REQUIRED TO APPEAR 

IN COURT UNLESS YOU DESIRE. 

1. NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that 
John C. Camacho has filed a Petition 
for Probate of Will and for Letters 
Testamentary.

2. A hearing on the petition will 
be heard on Wednesday, January 24, 
2024, at 10:40 a.m.

3. To attend or to participate in 
the hearing, you may appear in person 
at the Guam Judicial Center, appear 
remotely at https://guamcourts-org.
zoom.us and enter Meeting ID: 864 
4387 2213 and Passcode: JEMI; or call 
into the courtroom at 671-300-6703 
at the designated hearing time. For 
connectivity issues, you may contact 
Jannette Samson at (671) 475-0141 
or email jsamson@guamcourts.gov.

DATED: 2 JAN. 24

SOPHIA SANTOS DIAZ
Clerk of Court, 

Superior Court of Guam

By: /s/ Flora W. Fagan
Deputy Clerk I

The SCORE

‘Kick The 

Fat’
Continued from Page 17

PDN FILE PHOTO

In this file photo, race participants gather for a selfie before the 
start of the 27th Annual Pay-Less Markets Kick the Fat 5K/10K in 
Hagåtña on March 18, 2023.

PDN FILE PHOTO

Ready, set, go! In this file photo, competitors of the 5K division 
take off from the starting line during the 27th Annual Pay-Less 
Markets Kick the Fat 5K/10K in Hagåtña on March 18, 2023.

Page 3 of 13



Page 1 of 3 

PUBLIC DEFENDER SERVICE CORPORATION 

Board of Trustees’ Meeting 

Tuesday, November 28, 2023 – 12:30 PM 

via Video Conferencing - Zoom 

Public Defender Service Corporation Conference Room 

MINUTES 

I. CALL TO ORDER

The meeting was called to order at 12:32 p.m. on November 24, 2023 by Chairman Chief

Justice Robert J. Torres.

II. ROLL CALL

Present: Chief Justice Robert J. Torres, Chairman 

Trustee Donna M. Quinata, Member 

Trustee KristiAnna Whitman, Member  

Excused: Presiding Judge Alberto C. Lamorena, III, Vice Chairman 

Attorney Jacque T. Terlaje, GBA President, Member 

Others Present: Stephen P. Hattori, Executive Director  

John P. Morrison, Deputy Director 

Ana Maria Gayle, APD Managing Attorney 

Cathyann Gogue, Administrative Director 

Julito Tingson, MIS Administrator 

Carol Hinkle-Sanchez, Civil Law Center 

Gwendolyn Diego, Civil Law Center 

Audre K. Hattori, Alternate Public Defender 

III. DETERMINATION OF QUORUM

With the presence of three (3) out of the five (5) board members, a quorum was determined

for the meeting to proceed.

IV. PROOF OF DUE NOTICE OF MEETINGS

“Notice of Public Meeting” was published in the Pacific Daily News on Tuesday,

November 21, 2023 and Friday, November 24, 2023.

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES

Chairman Chief Justice Torres stated they will proceed with the approval of the minutes of

the regular board meeting of October 24, 2023.

Motion to adopt the minutes subject to correction was made by Trustee Quinata and

seconded by Trustee Whitman. Approved by acclamation.

Page 4 of 13



Page 2 of 3 

VI. OLD BUSINESS

A. FINANCIAL STATUS UPDATE/ALLOTMENT RELEASES (PDSC, APD,

CLC)

AD Gogue stated PDSC and APD received $908,403.00 for their allotments since

the last board meeting bringing the total received at 91 percent.

The Improving Criminal Justice Response grant (ICJR) has a balance of

$41,207.00. The balance is being used for The Advocacy Center’s (TAC) STOP

grant. The cost for personnel is $42,207 while Travel and Supplies is $9,204.

STOP 2022 is still pending approval with Federal Programs’ Office at the

Governor’s office.

As of this meeting, EJC has received all of its FY2023 funding DPHSS as

requested and the invoice for October 2023 for $22,618.93 has been submitted for

reimbursement.

The Access to Counsel grant has a balance under $100 and should be closed out

with BSP. Any remaining funds will be returned to BSP.

B. REPORT FROM PDSC EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

ED Hattori reported that the year-to-date stats for FY2024 show an increase of

1,155 cases which is down from prior years mainly because all non-criminal cases

were shifted to CLC. Stats provided are broken down into felonies, misdemeanors,

and bench warrants. Stats also include cases of attorneys who are no longer with

PDSC that get reassigned to another attorney, if needed. Attorney C. Spotanski has

left PDSC and PD is hoping to replace him shortly. Chief Justice Torres advised

that moving forward, the stats should be broken down into pre and post matters.

Chief Justice Torres continued that the criminal felony panel has been reduced to

two attorneys, both of whom have asked that no more cases be assigned to them for

the next few months. He asked that PDSC and APD consider ways to avoid

conflicting out of cases such as ‘walling off’ attorneys and ensuring that

withdrawals are warranted. ED Hattori responded that MA Hinkle-Sanchez will

speak more on that in her report and that PDSC will re-examine their conflict cases.

C. REPORT FROM APD MANAGING ATTORNEY

MA Gayle stated that funeral services for Attorney Spivey will take place this

weekend and all are invited to attend either in-person or via Zoom.

APD stats provide a monthly count of cases and year-to-date numbers can be

provided at the next meeting.

Page 5 of 13



Page 3 of 3 

MA Gayle stated that the Court has asked APD to reevaluate cases that were re-

appointed to Attorney Spivey to determine if true conflicts exist. She responded 

that this is being done on a case-by-case basis.  

Chief Justice Torres asked that a year-end report be provided as well as a 

breakdown of misdemeanors and felonies which MA Gayle confirmed she will 

provide.   

D. REPORT FROM CLC MANAGING ATTORNEY

MA Hinkle-Sanchez reported that CLC has had a total of 546 clients to date. A bulk

of the cases are EJC’s because many of the clients are receiving multiple services.

CLC will now be appointed guardian ad litem cases and are looking to establish a

volunteer program within CLC to utilize social workers, through an internship

program, with University of Guam. This arrangement with UOG will be cost-

effective for the Court and helpful to CPS in hiring trained social workers after the

program is complete. She advised the board that more information will be presented

on this program once MA Hinkle-Sanchez has completed her research.

MA Gayle stated that APD’s end-of-year stats were actually included in the last

BOT meeting packet.

VII. NEW BUSINESS

None.

VIII. PUBLIC DISCUSSION

None.

IX. ADJOURNMENT AND NEXT MEETING DATE

Chief Justice Torres suggested that the next board meeting be in-person depending on the

Trustees’ schedules and new business topics.

With no further matters to discuss, motion was made by Trustee Quinata and seconded

by Trustee Whitman to adjourn the meeting. Approved by acclamation.

The next BOT meeting is scheduled for Tuesday, December 26, 2024 at 12:30 p.m. in the PDSC 

conference room via Zoom/YouTube.  

Respectfully submitted, 

CATHY GOGUE 

Board Secretary  

Page 6 of 13



EXHIBIT A 

Agenda Item VI-C 

Old Business 

PDSC Executive Director 

Report 

Page 7 of 13



PUBLIC DEFENDER SERVICE CORPORATION
JANAURY 2024 BOARD OF TRUSTEES MEETING

ATTORNEY Ci
vi
l

Ci
vi
l ‐
 O
th
er

Ci
vi
l ‐
 T
em

po
ra
ry
 R
es
tr
ai
ni
ng

 O
rd
er

Ci
vi
l A

pp
ea
ls

Co
ns
ul
ta
tio

n

Cr
im

in
al
 A
pp

ea
ls

D
om

es
tic

Fe
lo
ny

 ‐ 
Ad

ul
t D

ru
g 
Co

ur
t

Fe
lo
ny

 ‐ 
Ar
so
n

Fe
lo
ny

 ‐ 
As

sa
ul
t

Fe
lo
ny

 ‐ 
Bu

rg
la
ry

Fe
lo
ny

 ‐ 
Ch

ild
 A
bu

se

Fe
lo
ny

 ‐ 
Cr
im

in
al
 M

is
ch
ie
f

Fe
lo
ny

 ‐ 
Cr
im

in
al
 S
ex
ua

l C
on

du
ct

Fe
lo
ny

 ‐ 
D
U
I

Fe
lo
ny

 ‐ 
Fa
m
ily
 V
io
le
nc
e

Fe
lo
ny

 ‐ 
Fo
rg
er
y

Fe
lo
ny

 ‐ 
G
en

er
al
 Ju

ris
di
ct
io
n

Fe
lo
ny

 ‐ 
H
om

e 
In
va
si
on

Fe
lo
ny

 ‐ 
Ki
dn

ap
pi
ng

Fe
lo
ny

 ‐ 
M
ur
de

r

Fe
lo
ny

 ‐ 
Ro

bb
er
y

Fe
lo
ny

 ‐ 
St
al
ki
ng

Fe
lo
ny

 ‐ 
Te
rr
or
iz
in
g

Fe
lo
ny

 ‐ 
Th

ef
t

Ju
ve
ni
le
 ‐ 
D
ru
g 
Co

ur
t

Ju
ve
ni
le
 ‐ 
G
ua

rd
ia
ns
hi
p

Ju
ve
ni
le
 ‐ 
PI
N
S

Ju
ve
ni
le
 ‐ 
St
a t
us
 O
ff
en

se

Ju
ve
ni
le
 D
el
in
qu

en
t

Ju
ve
ni
le
 P
ro
ce
ed

in
gs

M
is
de

m
ea
no

r ‐
 C
hi
ld
 A
bu

se

M
is
de

m
ea
no

r ‐
 C
rim

in
al
 S
ex
ua

l C
on

du
ct

M
is
de

m
ea
no

r ‐
 D
U
I

M
is
de

m
ea
no

r ‐
 F
am

ily
 V
io
le
nc
e

M
is
de

m
ea
no

r ‐
 G
en

er
al
 Ju

ris
di
ct
io
n

M
is
de

m
ea
no

r ‐
 G
en

er
al
 Ju

sr
is
di
ct
io
n

Pr
ob

at
e

Pr
ot
ec
tiv

e 
O
rd
er

Sp
ec
ia
l P
ro
ce
ed

in
gs

TO
TA

L 
CA

SE
S

Pe
rc
en

ta
ge

 o
f T

ot
al

# 
of
 P
re
Tr
ia
l f
ro
m
 T
ot
al

# 
of
 P
RE

‐B
W
 fr
om

 T
ot
al

# 
of
 P
O
ST
‐B
W
 fr
om

 T
ot
al

A. Molyneux 15 9 9 3 3 6 1 51 1 7 4 1 17 1 18 13 14 63 10 1 247 4% 76 41 23

B. Eggleston 1 2 17 18 3 10 1 19 20 1 2 7 3 2 5 52 6 12 2 4 187 3% 90 22 8

D. Highsmith 4 3 1 1 30 9 6 3 9 5 3 33 1 4 1 2 8 1 3 23 1 29 22 2 42 1 247 4% 80 26 9

E. Espiritu 1 23 1 4 11 1 6 3 55 4 1 3 8 1 20 1 3 1 33 9 55 244 4% 57 36 29

J. Morrison 1 59 8 14 7 13 4 4 2 50 1 1 1 7 14 1 26 8 24 32 1 278 5% 99 46 29

J. Roden 1 1 1 21 16 7 11 5 4 40 122 2 1 2 1 13 9 1 2 11 125 10 104 7 2 519 9% 113 64 66

K. Aguon 5 4 40 10 60 1 1 15 12 11 14 173 3% 53 15 3

M. Brown 1 1 1 1 6 1 1 1 1 2 30 1 16 1 10 9 1 84 1% 44 6 0

OTHER 1 1 1 1 11 6 3 1 2 1 4 14 469 6 1 1 1 1 2 3 21 61 18 1014 1 30 3 1678 29% 18 342 475

P. Sablan 11 1 10 6 5 6 15 158 2 1 2 1 10 9 1 1 8 38 10 108 403 7% 61 51 34

S. Hattori 1 1 7 7 81 16 10 5 6 6 1 1 326 3 1 2 3 15 1 2 52 32 85 1 3 668 12% 154 104 132

W. Bischoff 1 4 25 13 9 10 7 6 5 2 120 2 4 2 4 14 1 40 5 25 69 368 6% 78 43 32

W. Jones 24 20 7 3 4 1 24 88 1 1 2 1 11 11 4 37 5 20 2 3 7 1 49 326 6% 71 29 33

Z. Taimanglo 14 1 11 10 2 3 7 3 15 1 92 3 1 2 2 5 9 4 44 8 35 272 5% 81 47 29

TOTAL CASES 7 1 5 1 10 15 3 332 3 141 96 3 63 69 39 146 10 1590 9 1 14 22 13 74 108 3 9 102 18 132 6 14 4 275 367 207 1671 3 92 16 5694 1075 872 902

CASES OPENED 41%
CONFLICT 23%

INCOME EXCEEDED 35%
SUBSTITUTION

CLOSED

25382702733153

FISCAL YEAR COMPARISON  Average Case Time:
PRE to POSTFY2024 (Oct‐Dec) FY2023 FY2022 FY2021 FY2020

291 1156 1210 1105 1315 0‐6 Months
36 13% 182 20% 202 18% 114 10% 123 11% 7‐12 Months
7 3% 44 5% 34 3% 34 3% 8 1% 13 or more Months
1 0% 23 2% 0 0% 29 3% 25 2%

274 921 1142 1111 1083

Date: 01/19/2024 Preoared by PDSC MIS

* OTHER includes attorneys who are no longer employed with PDSC or cases that have not yet been assigned to an attorney.

Page 8 of 13



EXHIBIT B 

Agenda Item VI-C 

Old Business 

APD Managing Attorney 

Report 

Page 9 of 13



ALTERNATE PUBLIC DEFENDER

FY2024 1ST QUARTER

CY2023 FINAL COUNT

10/01/2023 - 12/31/2023

ATTO
R
N
EY

Pos
se

ss
io

n 
C
on

tro
lle

d 
Subs

ta
nc

e 
- P

CS W
ith

 In
te

nt
 - 

AD
C
 F

ELO
N
Y

Fam
ily

 V
io

le
nc

e 
- S

ta
lk
in

g 
- T

er
ro

riz
in

g 
FELO

N
Y

D
W

I -
 D

W
I+

BAC
 - 

D
W

I R
el

at
ed

 F
ELO

N
Y

H
om

e 
In

va
si
on

 - 
Bur

gl
ar

y 
- T

he
ft 

- R
ob

be
ry

 F
ELO

N
Y

Veh
ic

ul
ar -

 N
eg

lig
ent

 H
om

ic
id

e 
Fel

on
y

M
ur

de
r -

 A
gg

ra
va

te
d 

Ass
au

lt 
FELO

N
Y

C
SC

 - 
Kid

na
ppi

ng
 F

ELO
N
Y

Fire
arm

s 
/ G

un
 re

la
te

d F
ELO

N
Y

Fra
ud

 - 
For

ger
y 

FELO
N
Y

C
rim

in
al

 M
isc

hi
ef

 - 
C
rim

in
al

 T
re

sp
as

si
ng

 - 
H
ar

ra
ss

m
en

t

G
en

er
al J

ur
is
di

ct
io

n 
FELO

N
Y (a

ll 
ot

he
rs

)

FE
LO

N
Y
 T

O
T
A
L

D
W

I -
 R

ec
kl
es

s 
D
riv

in
g 

M
IS

D
EM

EAN
O

R

Fam
ily

 V
io

le
nc

e 
M

IS
D
EM

EAN
O

R

The
ft 

- R
et

ai
l T

he
ft 

M
IS

D
EM

EAN
O

R

Ass
au

lt 
- H

ar
ra

ss
m

en
t M

IS
D
EM

EAN
O

R

C
rim

in
al

 M
isc

hie
f -

 C
rim

in
al

 T
re

sp
as

si
ng

 M
IS

D
EM

EAN
O

R

G
en

er
al J

ur
is
di

ct
io

n M
IS

D
EM

EAN
O

R
 (a

ll 
ot

he
rs

)

M
IS

D
EM

E
A
N
O
R
 T

O
T
A
L

JU
V-D

EL

JU
V-P

IN
S

JU
V
E
N
IL

E
 -
 F

A
M

IL
Y
 C

O
U
R
T
 T

O
T
A
L

APPEAL

C
IV

IL
 - 

SPEC
IA

L 
- P

RO
TEC

TIV
E O

R
D
ER

O
C
T
O
B
E
R
 -
 D

E
C
E
M

B
E
R
 2

0
2
3

Pe
rc
en
ta
ge

C
Y
2
0
2
3
 F

IN
A
L

Pe
rc
en
ta
ge

FY
2
0
2
4
 t
o
 d

at
e

Pe
rc
en
ta
ge

P
R
E
-T

R
IA

L 
C
A
S
E
 N

U
M

B
E
R
S

A. Gayle 15 4 1 7 1 1 29 1 2 3 0 32 27% 129 26% 32 84% 126 ACG

P. Santos 9 8 1 5 1 2 26 1 1 0 2 29 25% 134 27% 29 76% 160 PJS

T. Dunphy 0 3 6 2 2 1 2 16 0 16 14% 97 19% 16 42% 83 TCD

L. Rapadas 1 1 1 3 0 4 7 11 14 12% 68 14% 14 37% 108 LMR

T. Scott 3 8 4 3 1 3 1 23 1 1 2 0 1 26 22% 74 15% 26 68% 50 TRS

R. Dirkx 0 0 0 0 0% 0 0% 0 0% 0 RSD

TOTAL 28 13 2 19 1 9 1 1 1 5 1 81 3 7 5 2 2 3 22 4 7 11 2 1 117 100% 502 100% 117 100% 527

To Judgment 61

409 105% 394 93%

FELONY

5%

Average Case Time CY2023

Months

275

00-05 MOS 12%

06-11 MOS 30%

12+ MOS 11%

12%

Closure Orders 354 71% 324

113 29% 94 22%

APD W/D 99 20% 74 16% 11%18% 54 15% 76 19% 46

21%

MISDE

CY2024

MISDE

83

69% 399 88% 76%

12% 171 36% 168 37%

121 26% 88 19% 78

9%

FELONY

PDSC W/D to APD 130 26%

CY2019CY2024 CY2018

CASES OPENED 502 471 453 363 391 423

81 22 11

CY2023 CY2022 CY2021 CY2020

Date Printed: 1/21/2024 Time: 2:41 PM Prepared by MO-AKPage 10 of 13



EXHIBIT C 

 Agenda Item VII-D 

Old Business

CLC Managing 
Attorney Report 

Page 11 of 13



OCT NOV DEC QTR 
TOTAL JAN FEB MAR QTR 

TOTAL APR MAY JUN QTR 
TOTAL JUL AUG SEPT QTR 

TOTAL
NUMBER OF CASES 
Opened 4 11 20 35
Closed 8 7 6 21
SERVICES
FEMA Support Services 0 0 0 0
Guardianship Over Minors 3 4 2 9
Landlord/Tenant 0 0 0 0
Last Will and Testament 0 0 0 0
Legal Advice Guidance 0 4 2 6
Living Will 0 0 0 0
Notary Service (Non-CLC) 0 10 16 26
Power of Attorney 0 0 1 1
Power of Attorney (Healthcare) 0 0 1 1
War Claims Issues 
(Inquiries/Probate) 58 0 0 58

OCT NOV DEC QTR 
TOTAL JAN FEB MAR QTR 

TOTAL APR MAY JUN QTR 
TOTAL JUL AUG SEPT QTR 

TOTAL
NUMBER OF CASES
Opened 26 32 39 97
Closed 13 23 34 70
SERVICES
FEMA Support Services 0 0 0 0
Guardianship (Information and 
Advice) 2 0 0 2

Landlord/Tenant Issues 1 0 0 1
Last Will and Testament 6 3 5 14
Living Will 2 1 2 5
Power of Attorney 19 15 24 58

Power of Attorney (Healthcare) 20 15 23 58

RECEIVED REQUESTS

Adoption 0 0 0 0
Annulment 0 0 0 0
Banking Issues 0 0 0 0
Debt Collection 0 0 0 0
Deed of Gift 0 0 1 1
Divorce 0 0 1 1
Domestic Issues 1 0 0 1
Employment Law 0 0 0 0
Guardianship Over an Adult 1 0 0 1
Landlord/Tenant Issues 2 0 0 2
Litigation Award Assistance 3 0 0 3
Living Trusts 4 0 0 4
Medical Malpractice 5 0 0 5
Medicare Application 6 0 0 6
Name Change 7 0 0 7
Probate 2 1 0 3
Property Border Issue 0 0 0 0
Property Title Service 1 0 0 1
Notary Service (Gov't Docs) 0 2 0 2
Notary Service (Personal Docs) 0 0 0 0
Public Assistance 0 0 0 0
Quitclaim Deed 0 0 0 0
Quiet Title Issues 0 0 0 0
Retirement questions 0 0 0 0
Small Claims 1 0 0 1
Small Estate Affidavit 0 1 0 1
Social Security Fraud 0 0 0 0
Social Services Assistance 0 0 0 0
Trusts 0 0 0 0
Wrongful Judgement 0 0 0 0
MISCELLANEOUS
Collaborations/Outreach 7 2 1 10
Conferences 1 0 0 1
Home/Hospital Visits 7 9 13 29
Trainings 1 0 0 1

ELDER JUSTICE CENTER
2023 2024 Total Fiscal 

Year 

(CLC/EJC) Fiscal Year 2024 Information for Board of Trustees

CIVIL LAW CENTER
2023 2024 Total Fiscal 

Year 

Page 12 of 13



OCT NOV DEC QTR 
TOTAL JAN FEB MAR QTR 

TOTAL APR MAY JUN QTR 
TOTAL JUL AUG SEPT QTR 

TOTAL

INTAKE and SCREENING 
DECLINED (CONFLICT) & REFFERED 0 0 0 0
OPENED 7 12 11 30

Total Intake and Screening 7 12 11 30
Description of Services 
Consult/Advice (Referred out) 6 8 10 24
Protective Order 0 1 1 2
Protective Order w/ Temp Child Custody/Visitation 0 1 0 1

Restraining Order 0 0 0 0
Motion to Extend RO/PO 0 0 0 0
Declined (Victim Requested) 0 2 0 2

Total of services for opened cases 6 12 11 29

CASE STATUS
Active Open Cases 9 3 4 16
Closed 12 11 12 35
CASES REFERRED TO TAC
Office of the Attorney General 
((Victim Service Center) 1 0 1 2

Guam Police Department (GPD) 9 6 5 20
Guam Bar Association (GBA) 0 0 0 0
Other 3 9 9 21

Total Referred to TAC 13 15 15 43
CASES REFERRED OUT
Adult Protective Services (APS) 0 5 4 9
Child Protectve Services (CPS) 1 0 1 2
Guam Bar Association (GBA) 0 0 1 1
Guam Police Department (GPD) 10 4 10 24
Guam Legal Services (GLS) 0 1 3 4
Micronesian Legal Services Corp. 
(MLSC) 0 0 0 0

Office of the Attorney General 
(Victims Service Center) 0 2 0 2

MISCELLANEOUS

Collaborations/Outreach 4 2 1 7
Conferences 1 0 0 1
Trainings 1 1 0 2

The Advocacy Center
2023 2024 Total Fiscal 

Year 

(TAC)  Fiscal Year 2024 Information for Board of Trustees 

Page 13 of 13


	Copy of 1 EJC CLC TAC BOT Stats October-December 2023 FY 2024.pdf
	CLC-EJC 
	TAC




